
kI$Z?
fl

SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL

ADVISORY COUNCIL (SFRAC)

BOARD MEETING

AGENDA

I 4

‘7 ‘‘ “.‘ ‘‘



Regular Meeting of the SFRAC Board of Directors
Thursday, February 29, 2024, 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building, EOC Rm., 2 Floor Conference Rm.
616 E. Del Mar, Laredo, Texas 78045

AGENDA

24-44

24-45 (Tab

24-46 (Tab

24-48 (Tab

24-49 (Tab

Item 24-44: Call to Order — Chairman, Jorge Delgado
a. Roll Call — Chairman.
b. Introduction of Guests — Chairman.

1) Item 24-45: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval of the Minutes to the SFRAC Board meeting held January 30, 2024 -

Chairman.

2) Item 24-46: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval of the SFRAC Bank Fund Balance/Accounts Statement Report, and
Expense Report for the Period of January 11, 2024, thru February 10, 2024 —

Chairman.

Item 24-47: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval to Change the Regularly Scheduled Seven Flags Regional Advisory
Council Board of Directors Meeting from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m., Based on
Comments Made by Board Members During the January 2024 Meeting —

Chairman.

3) Item 24-48: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval to Restructure the Existing Committees and Form Individual Committees
for the Stroke, Cardiac/STEMI, and Neonatal/NICU From the Hospital Program
Components Represented within Both Hospitals in the SFRAC Region and to
Approve the Nomination and Appointment of the Respective Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen for Newly Formed Committees Having Vacancies as a Result of Staff
Attrition or the Restructuring Process- Chairman.

4) Item 24-49 Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is a Second
Request Seeking Approval and Authorization to Change the Number of Regular
Board Meetings Held within a Fiscal Year (i.e., September 1t through August 31st.)
from Six (6) to a Modified Quarterly Schedule [i.e., Four (4) Times a Year] to be
Held on the Months of September, January, April, and August — Chairman.

24-47



24-50 (Tab

24-5 1 (Tab

24-52 (Tab

5) Item 24-50: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Authorize the Re-Distribution of FY24 System Development Grant
Award Funds and FY24 EMS County Assistance Grant Funds Among EMS Entities
in Good Standing from those SFRAC EMS Entities Not Having Complied with the
January 31, 2024, Deadline Submittal of SFRAC Required Membership Application
as Per By-Law Guidelines - Chairman

6) Item 24-51: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval of the SFRAC Committees Reports — Chairman.

Trauma/Injury Prevention Committee (Chairman: Letisia Colon; Vice-Chairman:
Joe Gonzalez)

Perinatal/NICU Committee (Chairman: Angelica Perez; Vice-Chairman: Lupita
Cisneros)

Maternal Committee (Chairman: Vacant; Vice-Chairman: Vacant)

EMS/Prehospital Committee: (Chairman: Victor Villarreal; Vice-Chairman:
Chantelle Molina)

Stroke/STEMI Committee: (Chairman: Vacant; Vice-Chairman: Angie Alvarez)

7) Item 24-52: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval of the Recommendation Made by the Ad-Hoc Committee to Authorize the
Allocation of Available FY24 EMS RAC Exceptional Item (E.l.) Funds Equally
Among Participating SFRAC EMS and Hospital Entities in Good Standing with the
Organization and in Accordance with DSHS Allowable Costs Associated with EMS
RAC Exceptional Item Funding. - Chairman

24-53(Tab 8) Item 24-53: Other Business — Chairman.

a. Report on the FY24 Membership Summary (i.e., Membership Fees and
Document Submittals) - SFRAC Administrator.

b. Report on the Status of South Texas Wristband/Pulsara Project Among TSA-T
EMS Entities and Hospitals — Joe Gonzalez.

c. Report on the Senate Bill 8 State Program — Joe Gonzalez.
d. Discussion Regarding Reporting Hospital Data as Part of the SFRAC Committee

Reports at Each of the SFRAC Board of Directors Meetings.
e. Basic Level Presentation Regarding the CARES Program Presented by Ms. Kim

Hermie BSN, RN, Texas CARES State Coordinator.

24-54 (Tab 9) Item 24-54 Communication/Correspondence — Chairman.



24-55 Item 24-55: Next SFRAC Board meeting — Chairman.

Friday, September 29, 2023 Laredo Medical Center, 1700 E. Saunders, 3rd• Floor,
Room 3-0 (Ortho Unit Gym), Laredo, Texas, 78041

Monday, October 23, 2023 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Administrative Building, 616
E. Del Mar, EOC Room, 2nd. Floor, Laredo, Texas,
78045

Tuesday, January 30, 2024 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building,

EOC Rm., 2nd Floor Conference Rm.,616 E. Del Mar, Laredo,

Texas 78045

Thursday, February 29, 2024 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building,

EOC Rm., 2nd Floor Conference Rm.,616 E. Del Mar, Laredo,

Texas 78045

Thursday, May 30, 2024

Friday, August 30, 2024

•
Jorge Delgado TSA-T Chairman (956) 552-8080

John Keiser TSA-T Administrator (956) 693-0536

24-56 Item 24-56: PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals/Organizations providing comments are
required to complete a SFRAC Public Comment Sign-In Sheet. The Board asks that each
presenter’s comments pertain to RAC business. The public comment process and matters
resulting from the process shall be directed by the Chairman. The Board will not discuss or take
immediate action on any agenda or non-agenda item(s) as a result of comments presented
during the meeting. The Board will hear the public comments but will not respond in the form of
dialog, except to ask questions, if necessary. All information received is subject to verification.
Those requesting to address the Board are granted three (3) minutes to address their topic(s).
The Board has requested that no insulting, abusive or profane language be used. As each
individual speaker begins his/her testimony, they must state their name for the record and state
on whose behalf they are providing comments.

Date Location

24-57 Item 24-57: Adjournment — Chairman.



‘1

r :

:

ITEM 24-45 (TAB 1)



Regular Meeting of the SFRAC Board of Directors
Tuesday, January 30, 2024, 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building, EOC Rm., 2” Floor Conference Rm.
616 E. Del Mar, Laredo, Texas 78045

AGENDA

MINUTES

24-30 Item 24-30: Call to Order — Chairman, Jorge Delgado

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, Jorge Delgado at 10:06 a.m.,
Tuesday, Janualy 30, 2024.

a. Roll Call — Chairman.

At the request of the Chairman, Mr. John Keiser, SFRAC Administrator proceeded
with the roll call:

Angel Care Ambulance: Reynaldo Veliz (Director) - Present
Bronze Star Ambulance: Absent
City of Laredo Fire/EMS: Chief Silvestre Rodriguez (Vice-Chairman) — Present
Doctors Hospital of Laredo: Letisia Colon (Director) — Present
Priority EMS: Jorge Delgado (Chairman) — Present
Laredo Medical Center: Joe Gonzalez (Treasurer) — Present
Medpoint Ambulance: Juan Medellin (Director) — Present
Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS: Francisco Martinez (Alternate) Present
Zapata County Fire/EMS: Gabriela Gonzalez (Alternate) — Present
Victorious Care Ambulance Seivice: Grace Garza (Alternate) — Present
Laredo Lifeline: Christina Lara (Alternate) — Present
Lalitas Ambulance: Rene Castillo (Director) - P
Capital Care EMS: Absent
Texas Superior Ambulance Service: lsmael Flores (Director) - Present
Skyline EMS: Gilbert Garza (Alternate) - Present
Villa Ambulance: Lilianne Paul (Alternate) - Present
Primary Care Ambulance: Armando Parra (Director) — Present
Subject Matter Expert: Janson Delattre — Absent
Member at -Large: John Jones: Present

A quorum of members was met.



b. Introduction of Guests — Chairman.

Manuel Aguilera, Dignicare EMS

24-31 (Tab 1) Item 24-31: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action in the
Approval of the Minutes to the SFRAC Board meeting held October 23, 2023 -

Oh airman.

A motion to accept the minutes as presented was made by Mr. Reynaldo VeIiz and
seconded by Chief Silvestre Rodriguez. Motion carried, unanimously.

24-32 (Tab

24-33 (Tab

24-34 (Tab

2) Item 24-32: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action in the
Approval of the SFRAC Bank Fund Balance/Accounts Statement Report, and
Expense Report for the Period of October 11, 2023, thru January 10, 2024 —

Chairman.

Mr. John Keiser, SFRAC Administrator, presented the Board with the reports for
the period found in the action item. A motion to accept the reports as presented
was made by Mr. Joe Garza and seconded by Mr. Joe Gonzalez. Motion carried,
unanimously.

3) Item 24-33: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Ratify the FY24 1st Quarter EMS RAC/Exceptional Item/System
development Financial Status Report as Submitted to the Texas Department of
State Health Services (DSHS) — Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator presented the reports to the Board indicating that there were
no expenses for the period but nevertheless the report needed to be submitted to
be and was submitted to DSHS. A motion to approve the reports as presented was
made by Mr. Gonzalez and seconded by Mr. Veliz. Motion carried, unanimously.

4) Item 24-34: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Ratify the FY23/24 5th Quarter Senate Bill 8 Financial Report as
Submitted to the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) - Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator deferred the item to Mr. Joe Gonzalez, in the role of Program
Specialist for the SB8 Program. Mr. Gonzalez presented the Board with the report
for the 5th Quarter period. He indicated that the additional funds reflected on the
report was to be used for courses to be aligned with the City of Laredo Fire/EMS
Department, but City of Laredo Legal Department was in the process of reviewing
the agreement which is to be the basis for this arrangement.

A motion to accept the report as presented was made by Mr. Veliz and seconded
by Mr. lsmael F/ores. Motion carried, unanimously.



24-35 (Tab

24-36 (Tab

5) Item 24-35: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possibie Action is the
Approval to Authorize the SFRAC Chairman to Appoint Members from the SFRAC
Board or General Membership to Form an Ad-Hoc Committee to Identify a Project
for the Utilization of the Exceptional Item (IE) Funds in the FY24 Grant Cycle -

Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator addressed the Board explaining that there had been a
contract amendment to the EMS RAC contract that provided an additional
$150,000 for the SFRAC region for this fiscal year. Further explaining that the
funds were specifically allocated to assist the RAC throughout the state with funds
to increase capacity in meeting new rules and obligation being placed by the DSHS
on RAC5. The funds can also be used for regional projects as approved by RAC
Boards. SFRAC Administrator indicated that this fiscal year (i.e., FY24) funds
would not be used to contract for seivices in meeting obligation associated with the
new rules and meeting the RAC Self-Assessment measures. With that being the
case, the funds would necessarily be used for another purpose in the region, that
being regional project(s) or individual projects.

SFRAC Administrator requested the appointment of an Ad-Hoc Committee of
interested members from the Board to discuss and assist in determining how the
funds would be spent. At the time no members volunteered. SFRAC administrator
indicated that after the meeting if any members would be interested in participating
that they send him an email indicating so. A motion to form the ad-hoc committee
was made by Mr. Veliz and seconded by Mr. Gonzalez. Motion carried,
unanimously.

6) Item 24-36: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Authorize Entering into Contract with Aplos, LLC, for the Purchase and
Utilization of a Non-Profit Accounting Management Software at a Discounted
Annual Rate of One Thousand Eight Hundred and Fourteen Dollars and Forty
Cents ($1,814.40) and a One Time Implementation and Set-up Fee of One
Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety Nine Dollars ($1 ,499.00) for a Grand Total of
Three Thousand Three Hundred and Thirteen Dollars ($3,313.40). Costs for the
Purchase of this Software and Related Services Will be Covered by EMS
RAC/Exceptional Item (El) Contract Funds Dedicated in Part for Staff and Capacity
Development Among RACs throughout the State - Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator provided that Board with the results of the most recent fiscal
review as performed by DSHS, which resulted in three findings, one of which dealt
specifically with the SFRAC’s lack of having an adequate accounting system.
SFRAC Administrator indicated that several accounting products were considered
and the Aplos software provided the best in terms of customer service, technical
assistance and training opportunities, and focus on non-profit fund accounting
needs. A motion to acquire the Ap105 fund accounting software was made by



Ms. Letisia Colon and seconded by Mr. Gonzalez. Motion carried, unanimously.

24-37 (Tab

24-38 (Tab

7) Item 24-37: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval to Form an Individual Committee for the Maternal Health Hospital
Program Component Representing Both Hospitals in the SFRAC Region and the
Nomination and Appointment of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the Same Said
Committee - Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator addressed the Board reminding them that the new DSHS
rules would require the formation of individual committees among the RACs and
that at the current time N/CU, Perinatal and Maternal are all part of one committee.
A motion to form a separate committee for Maternal was made by Mr. Gonzalez
and seconded by Ms. Colon. Motion carried unanimously.

8) Item 24-38: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action in the
Approval of the SFRAC Committees Reports — Chairman.

Trauma/Injury Prevention Committee (Chairman: Letisia Colon; Vice-Chairman:
Joe Gonzalez)

Ms. Letisia Colon reported that on January 9, 2024, a course for Stop the Bleed
was conducted for Triumph Highschool. Twenty-Eight staff members from the
school received the training. Involved in providing the course were Doctors
Hospital, Laredo Medical Center and Laredo College.

Perinatal/NICU/Maternal Committee (Chairman: Angelica Perez; Vice-Chairman:
Lupita Cisneros)

No items to report.

EMS/Prehospital Committee: (Chairman: Victor Villarreal; Vice-Chairman:
Chantelle Molina)

No actual items to report from the Committee, although Ms. Chantelle Molina
briefly mentioned the implementation of code use within the hospitals.

Stroke/STEMI Committee: (Chairman: Jennifer Garcia; Vice-Chairman: Angie
Alvarez)

No items to report.



24-39(Tab 9) Item 24-39: Other Business — Chairman.

a. Report on the FY24 Membership Summary (i.e., Membership Fees and
Document Submittals) - SFRAC Administrator.

SFRAC Administrator presented the Board with a brief report regarding the
membership summaiy, indicating that several members still had not submitted
the required documentation which could potentially make them according to the
By-Laws, Members Not In Good Standing”, which would affect their eligibility
status to receive funds.

b. Report on the Status of South Texas Wristband/Pulsara Project Among TSA-T
EMS Entities and Hospitals — Joe Gonzalez.

Mr. Joe Gonzalez presented the Board with a report on the status of the ongoing
implementation of the wristband/Pulsara project. He indicated that for Pulsara at
least 9 entities had created accounts, 2 were in process, and 6 had not started.

c. Report on the Senate Bill 8 State Program — Joe Gonzalez.

Mr. Gonzalez provided the Board with a report on the 5B8 Program. According
to the information from Mr. Gonzalez’ report, 48 students had already taken the
course with 9 passing and 10 pending to take the exam. Additionally, 29
students failed the course and only one paid back the tuition cost. All other
students not having paid back the tuition have been referred to DSHS for further
action in collecting the funds. Mr. Gonzalez also mentioned that the additional
$150,000 received under the SB8 program will be used to provide 39 students
tuition funds under the City of Laredo. The agreement/MOU is still under review
with the City of Laredo legal department.

d. Report on DSHS’ Fiscal Support and Oversight Unit Fiscal Monitoring Review
Findings of the SFRAC Organization Fiscal Program Component.

SFRAC Administrator presented the Board with documentation regarding the
findings of the most recent fiscal review performed by DSHS on the SFRAC
organization. He indicated that there were three findings of which all had been
addressed with a corrective action plan. The most crucial finding consisted of
SFRAC not having a reliable accounting system to manage the organization. As
a result of that SFRAC administrator indicated that the new accounting software
(i.e., Aplos) would address that issue. In addition, SFRAC Administrator
acknowledged that he would be working on developing fiscal policies and
procedures for the SFRAC organization which would be separate from the By-
Laws.



e. Discussion Regarding Subject Matter Related to the EMS Wall Time White
Paper Recently Released by the Governor’s Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
and Trauma Advisory Council (GETAC).

The item regarding the EMS Wall Time White Paper recently released by
GETAC was presented and discussion on the matter ensued. Ms. Diedra Lee,
DSHS representative, was also involved in the discourse, providing a
perspective from DSHS and a brief history regarding the paper. Chief Silvestre
Rodriguez shared with the Board his experience with the local hospitals,
primarily Laredo Medical Center, on incidents of Wall Time. He did indicate that
discussions with the hospitals are currently taking place to improve Wall/Wait
Times. In addition, he agreed to provide data to the Board showing trends over
time.

24-40 (Tab 10) Item 24-26 Communication/Correspondence — Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator presented the Board with correspondence pertaining to the
SFRAC. As part of the correspondence received was an email communication
from Ms. Kim Hermie, introducing her as the new State of Texas CARES
Coordinator. A second communication was also in the form of an email from HiIaiy
Watt, CBRAC CEO, announcing the availability of disaster training courses for
trauma program managers. And the last set of correspondence was again in the
form of an email from Kim Hermie, Texas CARES Coordinator, presenting CARES
program data collection forms.

24-41 Item 24-41: Next SFRAC Board meeting — Chairman.

Friday, September 29, 2023 Laredo Medical Center, 1700 E. Saunders, 3rd• Floor,
Room 3-0 (Ortho Unit Gym), Laredo, Texas, 78041

Monday, October 23, 2023 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Administrative Building, 616
E. Del Mar, EOC Room, 2nd. Floor, Laredo, Texas,
78045

Tuesday, January 30, 2024 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building,

EOC Rm., 2nd Floor Conference Rm.,616 E. Del Mar, Laredo,

Texas 78045

Thursday, February 29, 2024 TBD

Thursday, May 30, 2024

Friday, August 30, 2024



IFh ——.

Jorge Delgado TSA-T Chairman (956) 552-8080

John Keiser TSA-T Administrator (956) 693-0536

24-42 Item 24-42: PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals/Organizations providing comments are
required to complete a SFRAC Public Comment Sign-In Sheet. The Board asks that each
presenters comments pertain to RAC business. The public comment process and matters
resulting from the process shall be directed by the Chairman. The Board will not discuss or take
immediate action on any agenda or non-agenda item(s) as a result of comments presented
during the meeting. The Board will hear the public comments but will not respond in the form of
dialog, except to ask questions, if necessary. All information received is subject to verification.
Those requesting to address the Board are granted three (3) minutes to address their topic(s).
The Board has requested that no insulting, abusive or profane language be used. As each
individual speaker begins his/her testimony, they must state their name for the record and state
on whose behalf they are providing comments.

No one registered for public comment.

24-43 Item 24-43: Adjournment — Chairman.

A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Gonzalez and seconded by Chief Rodriguez. Motion
carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned.



/

I

ITEM 24-46 (TAB 2)



SE
V

EN
FL

A
G

S
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

A
D

V
IS

O
R

Y
C

O
U

N
C

IL
FY

24
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
ST

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
R

E
PO

R
T

P
er

io
d

E
nd

in
g

FY
24

SF
R

A
C

B
A

N
K

PR
O

G
R

A
M

FU
N

D
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
A

N
D

E
N

D
IN

G
B

A
LA

N
C

E
R

E
PO

R
T

C
lo

si
ng

C
lo

si
ng

B
al

an
ce

S
ys

te
m

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
F

un
d

C
lo

si
ng

B
al

an
ce

H
ol

di
ng

A
cc

ou
nt

C
lo

si
ng

B
al

an
ce

(i
.e

.,
S

en
at

e
Bi

ll

8
P

ro
gr

am
)





MEMB1 FOC

Cirniinity FDIC
fl 1 L .iedo. TX /34i
LHUU I4) /2 8Ui

SE RLYERSE SIO FOR MPORTM4T UF,RUATOb

Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591594
1216 SANTA MARIA Enclosures
LAREDO TX 78040

MS -+-

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of January 22, 2024, the daily Point of Sale dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal dollar limit is $2,000.

For questions, Contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number 1010591594 Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24
Previous Balance 90,763.40 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 90,763.40
Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected 90,763.40

Service Charge .00
Interest Paid .00
Current Balance 90,763.40

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Date Balance
1/11 90,763.40





Jexas.C OlTllillIflltV
Bank

6121 McPhe,vjn Road
PD Boa4Se
Ledo. TX 11)45
I15€) 72-B3

Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T
EMS RAC ACCOUNT
1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

Date 2/09/24
Primary Account
Enclosures

page 1
1010591495

1

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: AS of January 22, 2024, the daily Point of sale dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal dollar limit is $2,000.

For questions, Contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 1
Account Number 1010591495 Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24
Previous Balance 184,067.00 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 181,479.15
3 Checks/Debits 11,830.15 Average Collected 181,479.15

Service Charge .00
Interest Paid .00
Current Balance 172,236.85

CHECKS AND WITHDRAWALS
Date Description Amount
,J5 PURCHASE Ap, ware 1,499.-

PPD
9000021251

2/05 PURCHASE Aplos Software 1,814.40-
PPD
9000021251

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER
Date Check No Amount
2/05 1005 8,516.75
Denotes missing check numbers

MEMBER FOIC

FDIC
‘lOtIC EE R€YERE 1ID( FOfi PO*AN FORMATtOW

1



xasCon-mitnitv P0 Rn 44I

Bank L.,edo. TX
(giG) ?2291T3

Ls Community Bank 1-tome

Date 2/09/24
Primary Account
End osures

Paqe 2
1010591495

1

TCB COURTESY CHECKING

184,067.00

1010591495 (Conti nued)

MEMBER FDIC

FDIC
10T*CE SEE REVERSE SD4 FOR POST*4 OETO



Q > m 0 C C, z m C-
)

0 C
” 0 a) 0 3 0 6
0 C
”

0
)

1
9

C C U
,

.

•1 k
4

.1
i

c
,,





MEMBER FOIC

FDIC
IZ L aqedo. TX 1D45
jiaiii

WOUC 5.( RERSE SM FOR IPOI1ANT

Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA, TRUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591396
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT Enclosures 2
1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: AS of January 22, 2024, the daily Point of Sale dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal dollar limit is $2,000.

For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 2
Account Number 1010591396 Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24
Previous Balance 49,235.68 Days in the statement period 32

1 Deposits/Credits 750.00 Average Ledger 48,784.28
2 Checks/Debits 2,063.16 Average Collected 48,784.28

service Charge .00
Interest Pa1d .00
Current Balance 47,922.52

Ji DDA REGULAR DEPOSIT 750.00

DEPOSITS AND ADDITIONS
Date Description Amount

CHECKS AND WITHDRAWALS
Date Description Amount
2/01 DBT CR0 1550 01/31/24 Z232b54 159.90-

ZOOM. US 888-799-9666
WWW.ZOOM.US CA C#3893

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER
Date Check No Amount

I 2/01 1012 1,903.25
I Denotes missing check numbers



‘I,Tcxas
ConnnLlnlty

Bank
1121 MEPt,rpp,n Ro,d
P 0 Rwc 4OI9
Liedo, TX 74
(%) 12?e)xI

MEMBER FOIC

FDIC
4OT BEE REVERSE SO( FOR IMPORJNT .YETOI

I Th Bank Home

Date 2/09/24 Paae 2
Primary Account 1010591396
Enclosures 2

TCB COURTESY CHECKING 1010591396 (Continued)

1/11 49,235.68 2/01 47,922.52



0060E00CUI-Cl)
0w0D0w00

(1)0Ui0C,2UCUC)

‘CC
.

C
.CC000

ClC-





MUBER FDC

Crnunity FDIC
TX 7345 ... -

LJa.zu %) /??-8]:n

140UCt SE( IiER8E SIDt FOR RPR7iJ4T ‘RT’OP

Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591693
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT Enclosures
1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: AS of January 22, 2024, the daily Point of Sale dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal dollar limit is $2,000.

For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number 1010591693 Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24
Previous Balance 53,296.31 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/credits .00 Average Ledger 53,296.31
Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected 53,296.31

service Charge .00
Interest Paid .00
Current Balance 53,296.31

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Date Balance

1P3I11 1





MEMBEIFDIC

CJ?ini’ FDIC
j I, Liedo. IX 745
i,aiij () ?2?-93X1

Ot.CE SE RVER$E 4O( FOR IJPTANT OR*TO

Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591792
HOLDING ACCOUNT Enclosures
1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of January 22, 2024, the daily Point of Sale dollar limit for TCB
debit Cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal dollar limit is $2,000.

For questions, contact us at (956) 722—8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number 1010591792 Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24
Previous Balance 371,236.96 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 371,236.96
Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected 371,236.96

Service Charge .00
Interest Paid .00
Current Balance 371,236.96





FY24 OPERATING BUDGET EXPENSE REPORT

(FEBRUARY)

FY24 SFRAC GENERAL FUND

MEMBERSHIP REVENUE

SUMMARY
General Fund Frujected
Membership Reuenue fur $15,150.00
FY24

Actual Membership Funds
$10,950.00

Collected tu Date

Total (+1-) % ($4,200.00)

FY24 GRANT PROGRAM

FUNDS
EMS County Assistance

$90,724.00
Grant (Regular)

Senate Bill 500 Funding $0.00

System Deuelupment (i.e.,
$46,021.00

Tobacco)

Enceptiunal Item )E.t.)
Legislatiue Funding (EMS $150,OSO.S0
SAC)

EMS SAC Grant (Regular) $34,067.00

FY24 Fund Raiser
$10,305.00

)Bomlathon)

Total $331,117.00

FY24 General Fund (Program Operation) Expenditures FY24 EMS County Assistance Grant Allocations /Hff{1
Pco)ectnd Actual PFojected Actual

DiffeFence DiffeFence
Cost Cost (Paid) Cost Coot Paid

Post Office Fee $180.00 $176.00 $4.00 Bronze Starr Ambulance $5,383.63 $5,383.64

Laredo Fire Department
$5,383.62 $5,363.62VFIS Insorance $1,500.00 $1,500.00

EMS/Fire

TETAF Dues $900.00 $1,000.00 -$100.00 Angel Care Ambulance $5,363.64 $5,363.64

OHSH Re: (Payment of Webb County Volunteer
$0.00 $303.21 -$303.21 $5,383.64 $5,363.64

Disallomed Cost) Fire/EMS

CPA IRS Filing/Income
$1,000.83 $1,000.00 Victorious Care Ambulance $5,383.64 $5,383.64

Statement
SAC Chair/GETAC Trauel

)Neoember 2023, Austin, $3,800.00 $1,271.35 $2,528.65 Priority EMS $5,383.64 $5,383.64

To.)
GETAC Traoel (February

$2,000.00 $2,000.00 Zapara County Frre/EMS $14,934.00 $14,934.00
2024, Austin, To., Required)
GETAC Traeel (August 2024

$3,800.00 $3,800.00 Tenas Soperinr Ambulance $5,383.64 $5,383.64
Austin, To., Required)
TETAF Annual

$0.00 $0.00 Laredo Lifeline $5,383.64 $5,383.64
Worhrhop/Confernce
Gooaddy Web Site Seoemal

$400.00 $361.09 $18.91 Medpoiot Ambulance $5,383.64 $5,383.64
(Debit)

Zoom $159.00 $159.00 $0.00 Villa Ambulance $5,383.64 $5,383.64

Subtotal $13,739.00 $3,290.65 $10,448.35 Lalitas Ambulance Care $5,383.62 $5,383.62

Sbyline EMS $16,570.00 $16,570.00

Total Under/Over Budget: -$10,448.35 Subtotal $90,724.00 $0.00 $90,724.00



FY24 General Fund (Fund Raisers) 4’’ ‘ .‘

Funds Total Funds fur
Balance

Generated Project Utilization

Oowlathon $10,305.00 $0.00 $10,305.00

Victorious Care Ambulance $3,068.06

Priority EMS $3,068.06

FY24 EMS RAC Grant
Projected Actual

Difference
Cost Cost Paid

Adminisrralive Fee list Qtr.l $8,516.75 $8,516.75 $0.00

Administrative Fee l2nd Qir.l $8,516.75 $0.00 $8,516.75

Administrative Fee (3rd QEr.l $8,506.75 $0.00 $8,516.75

Adminsirailee Fee lath Qir.l $8,516.75 $0.00 $8,516.75

Subtotal $34,067.00 $8,516.75 $25,550.20

FY24 EMS RAC Grant (Exeptional Item Funds) $150,000
Projected Actual

Fund Balance
Cost Cost Puid

Project Funding ITo Be
$150,000.00 $150,000.00

Determined(

Aplos Accounting Softmare
$1,814.00 $1,814.00 -$1,014.00

purchasee
Aplns Accounting Softmare

$1,400.00 $1,490.00 -$1,499.00
Set Up Fee

Subtotal $150,000.00 $146,687.00

Laredo Lifeline $5,068.06

Villa Ambulance $3,058.06

Teous Superior Ambulance $3,058.06

Zapata County Fire/EMS $3,088.11

Laredo Medical center $3,068.06

Doctors Hospital of Laredo $5,388.08 Equipment $0.00

Lalitas Ambulance care $3,060.06 lecenilees $0.00

Medpuiet Ambulance $5,068.06 Subtotal $527,627.09 $165,857.13 $565,789.08

- Actual
Difference

Cost Cost

50.00 $0.00 $0.00

Projected Actual
Difference

Cost Cost

Subtotal $10,305.00 $0.00 $10,305.00

FY24 System Development Grant Allocations
Projected Actual

Difference
Cost Cost

Bronze Starr Ambulance $3,068.06

Laredo Fire Department
$3,088.06

EMS/Fire

Angel care Ambulance $3,088.08

Webb county Volunteer
$3,068.08

Fire/EMS

Senate Bill 8 Grant Program Funding
Projected Actual

Balance
Cost Btioenditureu

Education/Scholarships $555,534.00 $123,661.88 $550,672.12

BAC Administration $73,293.09 $40,175.25 $33,117.84

Sbyline EMS

Subtotal

Other

$3,060.11

$48,021.00 $0.00 Local Planning Grant (LPG)
Projected

To Be Determined

Subtotal

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Subtotal $0.00





ITEM 24-48 (TAB 3)



FY
24

M
A

T
E

R
N

A
L

C
O

M
M

IT
E

E
C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
M

E
E

T
IN

G
D

A
T

E
:

P
re

se
nt

:
A

bs
en

t
—

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

:
P

re
se

nt
A

bs
en

t

N
A

M
E

T
IT

L
E

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

PH
O

N
E

E
M

A
IL

95
6-

52
3-

M
at

er
na

l
Pr

og
ra

m
D

oc
to

rs
H

os
pi

ta
l

of
L

ar
ed

o
S

ta
ce

y.
lo

pe
z@

uh
si

nc
.c

om
S

ta
ce

y
L

op
ez

M
an

ag
er

22
72

95
6-

52
3-

G
ua

da
lu

pe
P.

C
is

ne
ro

s
D

ir
ec

to
r

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

L
ar

ed
o

G
ua

da
lu

pe
.c

is
ne

rn
os

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

22
73

M
at

er
na

l
M

ed
ic

al
D

r.
D

av
id

B
en

av
id

es
D

oc
to

rs
H

os
pi

ta
l

of
L

ar
ed

o
D

ir
ec

to
r

95
6-

79
6-

M
at

er
na

l
P

ro
gr

am
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
M

ar
ia

sa
nt

il
la

n@
ch

s.
ne

t
M

ar
ia

Sa
nt

ill
an

M
an

ag
er

41
46

—

95
6-

79
6-

L
et

ic
ia

M
ur

ill
o

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

L
et

ic
ia

m
ur

il
lo

©
ch

s.
ne

t
45

16
—

D
ir

ec
to

r
W

om
en

’s
95

6-
79

6-
M

ar
ia

U
ri

be
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
M

ar
ia

ur
ib

e@
ch

s.
ne

t
Se

rv
ic

es
45

01

M
at

er
na

l
M

ed
ic

al
D

r.
G

eo
rg

e
T

ri
ve

tt
e

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

D
ir

ec
to

r



FY
24

C
A

R
D

IA
C

I
ST

E
M

I
C

O
M

M
IT

E
E

C
H

A
IR

M
A

N
:

M
E

E
T

IN
G

D
A

T
E

:

P
re

se
nt

:
A

bs
en

t

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

:
P

re
se

nt
A

bs
en

t

N
A

M
E

T
IT

L
E

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
P

H
O

N
E

E
M

A
IL

C
ri

st
in

a
Pa

ez
,

B
SN

,
RN

C
he

st
Pa

in
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
O

ff
ic

e
95

6-
79

6-
31

77
cr

is
ti

na
_p

ae
z@

ch
s.

ne
t

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

32
18

C
ha

nt
el

E.
M

ol
in

a,
D

N
P,

RN
S

tr
ok

e
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
ch

an
te

l_
m

ol
in

a@
ch

s.
ne

t
C

el
l

36
1-

23
1-

02
07

V
an

es
sa

S
er

na
,

B
SN

,
RN

T
ra

um
a

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

41
17

va
ne

ss
a_

se
rn

a@
ch

s.
ne

t

V
an

es
sa

G
on

za
le

z,
B

SN
,

RN
ED

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

39
12

va
ne

ss
a_

vi
ll

ar
re

al
@

ch
s.

ne
t

C
or

is
sa

N
in

o,
B

SN
,

RN
ED

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

39
12

co
ri

ss
a_

ni
no

@
ch

s.
ne

t

E
rn

es
to

H
er

na
nd

ez
,

M
SN

,
RN

ED
D

ir
ec

to
r

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

41
71

er
ne

st
o_

he
rn

an
de

z@
ch

s.
ne

t

Ju
an

it
a

F
er

na
nd

ez
,

B
SN

,
RN

IC
U

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

47
46

ju
an

it
a_

fe
rn

an
de

z@
ch

s.
ne

t

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

27
38

R
os

ie
T

am
ez

,
B

SN
,

RN
C

he
st

Pa
in

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

R
os

a.
T

am
ez

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

L
ar

ed
o

C
el

l
(9

56
)

77
1-

34
46

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

22
69

A
ng

ie
A

vi
la

,
RN

S
tr

ok
e

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

C
el

l
(9

56
)

33
4-

46
40

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

21
93

L
et

is
ia

C
ol

on
,

B
SN

,
RN

T
ra

um
a

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

le
ti

si
a.

co
lo

n@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

L
ar

ed
o

C
el

l
(9

56
)

52
3-

99
33

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

21
96

R
os

a
R

od
ri

gu
ez

,
RN

ED
M

an
ag

er
L

ar
ed

o
C

el
l

(9
56

)
20

6-
83

60



FY
24

S
T

R
O

K
E

C
O

M
M

IT
E

E
C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
M

E
E

T
IN

G
D

A
T

E
:

P
re

se
nt

:
A

bs
en

t

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

:
P

re
se

nt
A

bs
en

t

N
A

M
E

T
IT

L
E

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

PH
O

N
E

E
M

A
IL

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

32
18

C
ha

nt
el

E.
M

ol
in

a,
D

N
P,

RN
S

tr
ok

e
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
ch

an
te

l
m

ol
in

a@
ch

s.
ne

t
C

en
te

r
C

el
l

36
1-

23
1-

02
07

—

La
re

do
M

ed
ic

al
C

ri
st

in
a

Pa
ez

,
B

SN
,

RN
C

he
st

Pa
in

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

31
77

cr
is

ti
na

_p
ae

z@
ch

s.
ne

t
C

en
te

r

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

V
an

es
sa

S
er

na
,

B
SN

,
RN

T
ra

um
a

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

41
17

va
ne

ss
a

se
rn

a@
ch

s.
ne

t
C

en
te

r
—

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

V
an

es
sa

G
on

za
le

z,
B

SN
,

RN
ED

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

39
12

va
ne

ss
a

vi
ll

ar
re

al
@

ch
s.

ne
t

C
en

te
r

—

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
or

is
sa

N
in

o,
B

SN
,

RN
ED

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

39
12

co
ri

ss
a

ni
no

©
ch

s.
ne

t
C

en
te

r
—

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

E
rn

es
to

H
er

na
nd

ez
,

M
SN

,
RN

ED
D

ir
ec

to
r

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

41
71

er
ne

st
o

he
rn

an
de

z@
ch

s.
ne

t
C

en
te

r
—

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

Ju
an

it
a

F
er

na
nd

ez
,

B
SN

,
RN

IC
U

C
lin

ic
al

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

79
6-

47
46

ju
an

it
a_

fe
rn

an
de

z@
ch

s.
ne

t
C

en
te

r

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

27
38

R
os

ie
T

am
ez

,
B

SN
,

RN
C

he
st

Pa
in

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

R
os

a.
T

am
ez

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

L
ar

ed
o

C
el

l
(9

56
)

77
1-

34
46

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

22
69

A
ng

el
ic

as
al

in
as

@
uh

si
nc

co
m

A
ng

ie
A

vi
la

,
RN

S
tr

ok
e

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
ar

ed
o

C
el

l
(9

56
)

33
4-

46
40

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

21
93

L
et

is
ia

C
ol

on
,

B
SN

,
RN

T
ra

um
a

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

L
et

is
ia

.C
ol

on
@

uh
si

nc
.c

om
L

ar
ed

o
C

el
l

(9
56

)
52

3-
99

33

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

O
ff

ic
e

95
6-

52
3-

21
96

R
os

a
R

od
ri

gu
ez

,
RN

ED
M

an
ag

er
L

ar
ed

o
C

el
l

(9
56

)
20

6-
83

60
R

os
a.

R
od

ri
gu

ez
@

uh
si

nc
.c

om



FY
24

N
E

O
N

A
T

A
L

I
N

IC
U

C
O

M
M

IT
E

E
C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:

A
N

G
E

L
IC

A
P

E
R

E
Z

M
E

E
T

IN
G

D
A

T
E

:

P
re

se
nt

:
—

A
bs

en
t

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

:
P

re
se

nt
—

A
bs

en
t

N
A

M
E

T
IT

L
E

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

PH
O

N
E

E
M

A
IL

95
6-

32
6-

A
ng

el
ic

a
P

er
ez

N
PM

LM
C

an
ge

li
ca

_p
er

ez
@

ch
s.

ne
t

06
76

95
6-

20
6-

D
r.

S
at

bi
r

C
hh

in
a

N
M

D
LM

C
ss

ch
hi

na
©

ic
lo

ud
01

12

95
6-

25
1

-

Pa
tr

ic
ia

D
ia

z
N

IC
U

D
ir

ec
to

r
LM

C
pa

tr
id

a_
di

az
l@

ch
s.

ne
t

83
51

95
6-

52
3-

N
IC

U
P

ro
gr

am
D

H
L

L
is

a.
G

on
za

le
z2

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

Li
sa

Y.
G

on
za

le
z

M
an

ag
er

22
32

95
6-

52
3-

Li
lli

an
a

L
im

as
N

eo
na

ta
l

D
ir

ec
to

r
D

H
L

L
ill

ia
na

.li
m

as
@

uh
si

nc
.c

om
21

13

N
eo

na
ta

l
M

ed
ic

al
95

6-
52

3-
D

r.
R

ob
er

to
V

ill
eg

as
D

H
L

R
ob

er
to

.V
ill

eg
as

M
D

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

D
ir

ec
to

r
21

04



FY
24

T
R

A
U

M
A

I
IN

JU
R

Y
PR

E
V

E
N

T
IO

N
C

O
M

M
IT

E
E

C
H

A
IR

M
A

N
:

L
et

ic
ia

C
ol

on
M

E
E

T
IN

G
D

A
T

E
:

P
re

se
nt

:
A

bs
en

t

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
Jo

se
G

on
za

le
z

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

P
re

se
nt

A
bs

en
t

T
IT

L
E

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

PH
O

N
E

E
M

A
IL

N
A

M
E

V
an

es
sa

S
er

na
T

ra
um

a
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
95

6-
79

6-
V

an
es

sa
_s

er
na

@
ch

s.
ne

t
41

17
A

lm
a

H
er

na
nd

ez
T

ra
um

a
R

eg
is

tr
ar

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

95
6-

79
6-

A
lm

a_
he

rn
an

de
z1

@
ch

s.
ne

t
23

09



E
0
U

0
0

(0
>-

I—
a)
4-,a)
0
a)-j

LU

LU
z
0
x

-4
U)

oco
cm

LU
LU

0
C-)
-J

a-
Cl)
0

I

LU

a

Cl)

LU

Cb41

>-
U-

(
j
-J

ci)
C

-J

0

a)
I—

(0
-J

>-
z

0
C.)

LU
I

CD
z
I-
LU
LU

4-,
C
j)
Cr)
0

z

C
— a)

LI)
x
C.) -

z
0
I

0
0
-J

U’)
0

Ui

> -

C—
0
U,

LU
ci)

I
U,

N
ci)
(U
N
C
0
(3
I—

a)
4-,
a)

Ui

z



‘flc1

:

ITEM 24-49 (TAB 4)



20
24

C
A

LE
N

D
A

R

_
_
_
_
_

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

20
24

5
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27

28
29

_
_
_
_
_

31

M
A

Y
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

12
13

14
15

16
17

18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25

26
27

28
29

30
31

SE
PT

E
M

B
E

R
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28

2
9

FE
B

R
U

A
R

Y
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2

3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24

25
26

27
28

29

JU
N

E
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2
3
4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26

27
28

29
30

31

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23

24
25

26
27

28
29

30

31

JU
L

Y
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

1
2

3
4

5
6
:

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27

28
29

30
31

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16

17
18

19
20

21
22

2
3
:

24
25

26
27

28
29

30

-

A
P

L
20

24

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27

28
29
i
i

A
U

G
U

ST
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24

25
26

27
28

2
9
C

j
_
j

Ja
n

0
1
:

N
ew

Y
ea

r’
s

D
ay

Ja
n

15
:

M
ar

tin
L

ut
he

r
K

in
g

D
ay

F
eb

19
:

P
re

si
de

nt
s

D
ay

M
ay

27
:

M
em

or
ia

l
D

ay

Ju
l

0
4
:

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

D
ay

S
ep

02
:

L
ab

or
D

ay

O
ct

14
:

C
ol

um
bu

s
D

ay

N
ov

11
:

V
et

er
an

s’
D

ay

N
ov

28
:

T
ha

nk
sg

iv
in

g

D
ec

2
5
:

C
hr

is
tm

as
D

ay

M
A

R
C

H
20

24

S
M

T
W

T
F

S

1
2

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

20
24
-

-
-

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

2
0

2
4

S
M

T
W

T
F

S
S

M
T

W
T

F
S

1
2

1
2

3
4

5
6

7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28

29
30

31

C
al

en
da

rQ
ui

ck
ly

.c
om



•1•

ITEM 24-50 (TAB 5)



FY24 System Development Grant Re-Allocated Totals

Projected Re-Distributed Adjusted

Allocation Totals Funds Added Allocation Totals

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.11 $219.13 $3,287.24

$3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

Doctors Hospital of Laredo $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

Medpoint Ambulance $3,068.06

Skyline EMS

Subtotal

Grand Total: $46,021.00

Bronze Starr Ambulance

Laredo Fire Department

EMS/Fire

Angel Care Ambulance

Webb County Volunteer

Fire/EMS

Victorious Care Ambulance

Priority EMS

Laredo Lifeline

Villa Ambulance

Texas Superior Ambulance

Zapata County Fire/EMS

Laredo Medical Center

$219.15 $3,287.21

$3,068.11 $219.13 $3,287.24

$46,021.00 $3,068.06 $46,021.00



$5,383.62

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.62

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

$538.38 $5,922.00

Zapata County Fire/EMS

Texas Superior Ambulance

Laredo Lifeline

Medpoint Ambulance

Villa Ambulance

$14,934.00

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

$5,922.00

Adusted Totals

FY24 EMS County Assistance Grant Allocations
Projected

Re-Distributed
Allocation Totals

Funds Added

$538.38

$538.36

$538.36

$538.36

$538.36

Bronze Starr Ambulance

Laredo Fire Department

EMS/Fire

Angel Care Ambulance

Webb County Volunteer

Fire/EMS

Victorious Care Ambulance

Priority EMS

$14,934.00

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$538.36

$538.36

$538.36

$538.36

Skyline EMS $16,570.00 $16,570.00

Subtotal $90,724.00 $90,724.00$5,383.64

Grant Total: $90,724.00



ITEM 24-51 (TAB 6)

At

A. A. t —



S
E

V
E

N
F

L
A

G
S

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

C
O

U
N

C
IL

F
Y

24
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

S
IG

N
-I

N
S

H
E

E
T

T
R

A
U

M
A

!
IN

JU
R

Y
PR

E
V

E
N

T
IO

N
D

A
T

E
:

FE
B

R
U

A
R

T
Y

29
,

20
24

C
H

A
IR

PE
R

SO
N

:
L

et
is

ia
C

ol
on

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
:

Jo
se

“J
oe

”
G

on
za

le
z,

Jr
.

M
em

be
r

N
am

e
R

ep
re

se
nt

in
g

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

P
ho

ne
E

m
ai

l
A

d
d

re
ss

Ja
im

e
A

.
L

op
ez

C
ity

of
L

ar
ed

o
Fi

re
D

ep
t.

E
M

S
95

6-
23

6-
82

12
jI

op
ez

3@
ci

.la
re

do
.tx

.u
s

A
do

lf
o

M
ar

tin
ez

A
ng

el
C

ar
e

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

E
M

S
95

6-
24

2-
98

14
fi

to
m

as
sg

e@
ho

tm
ai

I.
co

m

A
ng

el
G

ar
ci

a
A

ng
el

C
ar

e
A

m
bu

la
nc

e
E

M
S

95
6-

76
3-

35
90

li
ne

m
an

5l
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

—
.

‘C
‘‘

C



S
E

V
E

N
F

L
A

G
S

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

C
O

U
N

C
IL

F
Y

24
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S

S
IG

N
-I

N
S

H
E

E
T

PE
R

IN
A

T
A

L
I

N
IC

U
!

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

D
A

T
E

:
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

29
,

20
24

C
H

A
IR

P
E

R
S

O
N

:
A

n
g

el
ic

a
P

er
ez

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
:

G
u

ad
al

u
p

e
“L

up
it

a”
C

is
n
er

o
s

M
em

be
r

N
am

e
R

ep
re

se
n
ti

n
g

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

P
h

o
n

e
E

m
ai

l
A

d
d
re

ss

L
au

ra
U

ri
be

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

M
at

er
na

l
95

6-
76

3-
20

88
m

ar
ia

_u
ri

be
@

ch
s.

ne
t

L
et

ic
ia

M
ur

ril
lo

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

M
at

er
na

l
95

6-
76

3-
20

88
le

ti
ci

a_
m

ur
il

l@
ch

s.
ne

t

G
ab

ri
el

a
K

.
A

rz
ua

ga
D

oc
to

rs
H

os
pi

ta
l

of
L

ar
ed

o
M

at
er

na
l

95
6-

52
3-

21
15

ga
br

ie
la

.a
rz

ua
ga

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

R
ac

he
ll

e
V

.
G

on
za

le
z

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

L
ar

ed
o

M
at

er
na

l
95

6-
52

3-
22

72
ro

ch
el

le
.g

on
za

le
z@

uh
si

nc
.c

om

L
ill

ia
na

L
im

as
M

ac
la

s
D

oc
to

rs
H

os
pi

ta
l

of
L

ar
ed

o
N

eo
na

ta
l

95
6-

52
3-

21
13

li
ll

ia
na

.li
m

as
@

uh
si

nc
.c

om



FY
24

M
A

T
E

R
N

A
L

C
O

M
M

IT
E

E
C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
M

E
E

T
IN

G
D

A
T

E
:

P
re

se
nt

:
A

bs
en

t

V
IC

E
-C

H
A

IR
M

A
N

:
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

:
P

re
se

nt
—

A
bs

en
t
—

N
A

M
E

T
IT

L
E

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

PH
O

N
E

E
M

A
IL

M
at

er
na

l
Pr

og
ra

m
95

6-
52

3-
S

ta
ce

y
L

op
ez

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

L
ar

ed
o

S
ta

ce
y.

lo
pe

z@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

M
an

ag
er

22
72

95
6-

52
3-

G
ua

da
lu

pe
P.

C
is

ne
ro

s
D

ir
ec

to
r

D
oc

to
rs

H
os

pi
ta

l
of

L
ar

ed
o

G
ua

da
lu

pe
.c

is
ne

rn
os

@
uh

si
nc

.c
om

22
73

M
at

er
na

l
M

ed
ic

al
D

r.
D

av
id

B
en

av
id

es
D

oc
to

rs
H

os
pi

ta
l

of
L

ar
ed

o
D

ir
ec

to
r

95
6-

79
6-

M
at

er
na

l
Pr

og
ra

m
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
M

ar
ia

sa
nt

il
la

n@
ch

s.
ne

t
M

ar
ia

Sa
nt

ill
an

M
an

ag
er

41
46

—

95
6-

79
6-

Le
tic

ia
M

ur
ill

o
C

lin
ic

al
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
L

et
ic

ia
m

ur
il

lo
@

ch
s.

ne
t

45
16

—

D
ir

ec
to

r
W

om
en

’s
95

6-
79

6-
M

ar
ia

U
ri

be
L

ar
ed

o
M

ed
ic

al
C

en
te

r
M

ar
ia

_u
ri

be
@

ch
s.

ne
t

Se
rv

ic
es

45
01

M
at

er
na

l
M

ed
ic

al
D

r.
G

eo
rg

e
T

ri
ve

tt
e

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

D
ir

ec
to

r



S
E

V
E

N
F

L
A

G
S

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

C
O

U
N

C
IL

F
Y

2
4

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

S
S

IG
N

-I
N

S
H

E
E

T

E
M

S
/

P
R

E
-H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

D
A

T
E

:
F

e
b

ru
a
ry

2
9
,

2
0
2
4

C
H

A
IR

P
E

R
S

O
N

:
V

ic
to

r
V

il
la

rr
ea

l
V

IC
E

-C
H

A
IR

:
C

h
an

te
ll

e
M

ol
in

a

M
em

b
er

N
am

e
R

e
p

re
se

n
ti

n
g

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t
P

h
o

n
e

E
m

ai
l

A
d
d
re

ss

:
:
-
-

.
:.

.,
:
.

-
.
,
.
-
.
.

.
.

‘
.

-
,

-,i-r;z2sz

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

7
:

-
;
-
-
-

-
-

-
-

-
•
-
-

-
-

P
et

er
G

on
za

le
z

L
ar

ed
o

L
if

el
in

e
E

M
S

95
6-

25
1

-3
78

7
li

fe
li

ne
pe

te
r@

ya
ho

o.
co

m

Ja
im

e
A

.
L

op
ez

L
ar

ed
o

Fi
re

D
ep

t.
E

M
S

95
6-

23
6-

82
12

jl
op

ez
3@

ci
.l

ar
ed

o.
tx

.u
s

R
en

e
C

as
til

lo
L

al
ita

s
A

m
bu

la
nc

e
E

M
S

95
6-

60
6-

21
69

rc
r7

47
4@

gm
ai

l.c
om

ls
m

ae
l

F
lo

re
s

T
ex

as
S

up
er

io
r

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

E
M

S
95

6-
25

1
-6

72
2

te
xa

ss
up

er
io

r.
is

m
ae

l@
gm

ai
l.c

om

Jo
hn

ny
C

or
de

ro
Sk

yl
in

e
E

M
S

E
M

S
95

6-
24

6-
44

42
sk

yI
in

e.
em

s@
gm

ai
l.c

om



-J

0
z

ow
ow
cn

zuJ

0-

COO
00

U->

w
>w
Cl)



)

ITEM 24-52 (TAB 7)

I’

:a



Bronze Starr Ambulance

Laredo Fire Department EMS/Fire

Angel Care Ambulance

Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS

Victorious Care Ambulance

Priority EMS

Laredo Lifeline

Villa Ambulance

Texas Superior Ambulance

Zapata County Fire/EMS

Laredo Medical Center

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

Medpoint Ambulance

Skyline EMS

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

$10,477.66

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

FY24 EMS RAC EXCEPTIONAL ITEM (E.I.) FUNDING ALLOCATION PLAN
Entity Allocation Totals

$10,477.64

$10,477.66

TOTAL: $146,687.00



- -—

ITEM 24-53 (TAB 8)



ITEM 24-53-a. (TAB 8)

‘:;

3.

1•



U

LJ

>-



FY
24

SF
RA

C
M

em
be

rs
hi

p
S

um
m

ar
y

FY
23

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

Fe
es

.
$7

50
+

FY
20

L
at

e
F

ee
s:

$1
00

=
$
8
5
0
!

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

Fe
es

:

$7
50

/F
ai

d:
$0

1

Pa
l.

$7
50

!
T

ot
al

D
oe

:
$1

,6
00

C
ap

it
al

C
ar

e
EM

S
Fu

lly
V

es
te

d)
W

eb
b

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

P

H

T

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

Fe
es

:

L
ar

ed
o

M
ed

ic
al

C
en

te
r

(F
ul

ly
$1

,9
50

/F
ai

d:

V
es

te
d)

Y
es

N
o

N
o

$0
/B

al
$1

,9
50

W
eb

b
Y

es
N

/A

A

T
P

ri
or

it
y

EM
S

(F
ul

ly
V

es
te

d)
W

eb
b

Y
es

Y
es

Y
es

A

9-
20

-2
02

3/
11

6-
20

23

P

#0
58

4

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

Fe
es

:

$7
50

/P
ai

d:

$7
50

/P
al

.
$0

P P

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

F
ee

s:

M
ed

po
in

t
A

m
bu

la
nc

e,
In

c.
(F

ul
ly

01
-3

1-
20

24
/

2
$7

50
/P

ai
d:

V
es

te
d(

W
eb

b
Y

es
Y

es
Y

es
1-

20
24

#3
97

1
$7

50
1

Pa
l.

$0
p

P
P

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

F
ee

s:

V
ic

to
ri

ou
s

C
ar

e
A

m
ba

la
nc

e
(F

ul
ly

9-
13

-2
02

3/
9-

$7
50

/P
ai

d:
$0

!

T
V

es
te

d(
W

eb
b

Y
es

Y
es

Y
es

27
-2

02
3

Pa
l

$7
50

p
P

P

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

F
ee

s

W
eb

b
C

ou
nt

y
V

ol
un

te
er

Fi
re

/E
M

S
12

-1
5-

20
23

/
$7

50
/P

ai
d:

T
(F

ul
ly

V
es

te
d)

W
eb

b
Y

es
Y

es
Y

es
12

16
20

23
94

99
32

$7
50

1
Pa

l
$0

p
A

P

—
FY

24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

F
ee

s:

9
/2

9
/2

0
2

3
/

$7
S

0/
P

ai
d:

T
Sk

yl
in

e
EM

S,
(F

ul
ly

V
es

te
d)

Jim
.

H
og

g
Y

es
Y

es
Y

es
1

0
/4

/2
0

2
3

#9
19

2
$7

50
/

Pa
l.

$0
p

P

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

F
ee

s:

Z
ap

at
a

C
ou

nt
y

Fi
re

/E
M

S
(F

ul
ly

10
-1

8-
20

23
/

$7
50

/P
ai

d:

T
V

es
te

d)
Z

ap
at

a
Y

es
Y

es
Y

es
1
0
4
9
2
0
2
3

$
7

5
0

/
Pa

l.
$0

p
P

p

FY
24

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

V
ill

a
A

m
bu

la
nc

e
S

er
vi

ce
Fe

es
:

$7
50

/

(P
oa

rd
A

pp
ro

ve
d

M
em

be
ru

hi
p

Fu
lly

9-
29

-2
02

3/
Pa

id
:

$7
50

/
Pa

l.

T
V

es
te

d)
W

eb
b

Y
en

Y
es

N
o

1
0

/4
/2

0
2

3
#1

42
7

$°
P

P
P



I,

s1tN FLAGS SAC
ISA - r

ITEM 24-53-e. (TAB 8)

*



Introduction to CARES
(Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival)

CARES
Cardiac Arrest Registry

‘) to Enhance Survival



CARES
Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival

Contents

• Importance of OHCA Data Collection 3

• Brief History of CARES 3

• CARES Case Definition 4

• Data Collection & Elements 4

• Reporting Capability 5

• CARES in Action 6

• Additional Resources 6

Introduction to CARES 2



j..fi CARES
‘ Cardiac Arrest Registry
7 to Enhance Survival

Importance of OHCA Data Collection

EMS treated out-of-hospital cardiac arrest (OHCA) affects more than 350,000 Americans each year and is the third
leading cause of disability adjusted life years (DALY) in the United States, behind cardiovascular disease and back
pain. About 90 percent of people who experience an out-of-hospital cardiac arrest die. However, community-specific
survival rates vary markedly in the United States.

Cardiac arrest resuscitation is an important measure of a community’s emergency response readiness. Successful
resuscitation requires involvement by a range of individuals — including bystanders, emergency medical dispatchers,
first responders, paramedics, and hospital providers — and depends on rapid performance of a series of critical

actions intended to maximize the chances of survival following cardiac arrest, known as “the chain of survival”. The
links in this chain include activation of the emergency response system, rapid provision of CPR, early defibrillation,
prompt delivery of EMS care, and early post-resuscitative care. It is the range in timeliness and quality of these links
in the chain of survival that create the wide variation in survival rates. For every minute of cardiac arrest without
CPR or defibrillation, a patient’s chance of survival falls by 7-10%. Performing bystander CPR can nearly double
survival and public access defibrillation results in an almost 50% survival rate for patients presenting in a shockable
rhythm.

Critical actions needed to improve chances of survival of an out-of-hospital cardiac arrest

____

S.’
-•—• ->‘

Rapid dehvery ol Early post
advanced resuscitative care

emergency

rned8cal serv,ces

Measurement is key to improving quality of care and patient outcomes. In 2015, the Institute of Medicine released
“Strategies to Improve Cardiac Arrest Survival: A Time to Act,” which recommended the establishment of a national
cardiac arrest registry to monitor performance, identify problems, and track progress. Comprehensive surveillance
and reporting are the foundations for improving patient outcomes. Reliable and accurate data are critical toward
developing metrics, identifying benchmarks, revising education and training materials, and implementing best
practices.

Brief History of CARES

In 2004, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) established CARES in collaboration with the
Department of Emergency Medicine at the Emory University School of Medicine, with a mission to help communities
determine standardized outcome measures for OHCA allowing for quality improvement efforts and benchmarking
capability to improve care and increase survival. The program allows participating EMS systems to compare their
performance to de-identified aggregate statistics, allowing for longitudinal benchmarking capability at the local,
regional, and national level. By creating a user-friendly system to collect OHCA data and forming a network to share
best practices, CARES has transformed the manner in which EMS agencies address DHCA.

CARES began in Atlanta, Georgia collecting nearly 1,500 OHCA events in 2006. As displayed on the CARES Participant

!s’i2 the program has since expanded to include 33 state-based registries and more than 50 individual community
sites. CARES represents a catchment area of more than 178 million people or approximately 53% of the US
population. To date, the registry has captured over one million records, with more than 2,300 EMS agencies and

2,500 hospitals participating nationwide.

Rapid recognition Early cardiopulmonary Early rapid

and activation ot resuscitation (CPR) delibrrllatiorr with

EMS via 9-1-1 with an emphasis on an AED

chest compressions

Introduction to CARES 3



L)CARES
Cardiac Arrest Reqistr’
to Enhance Survival

CARES Case Definition

CARES captures data on all non-traumatic out-of-hospital cardiac arrests where resuscitation is attempted by a 911

Responder (CPR and/or defibrillation). This also includes patients that receive an AED shock by a bystander prior to

the arrival of 911 Responders. Inclusion and exclusion criteria are described below in Tables 1 and 2:

• Patients of all ages who experience a non-traumatic, out-of-hospital cardiac arrest.

• Patients who are pulseless on arrival of 911 Responder; OR

• Patients who become pulseless in the presence of 911 Responder; OR

• Patients who have a pulse on arrival of EMS, where a successful attempt at defibrillation was undertaken by a
bystander prior to arrival of 911 Responder.

• Unworked/untreated cardiac arrests, to include codes that are terminated immediately upon arrival of EMS because
the patient is not a viable candidate for resuscitation due to:

o Injuries incompatible with life. o Signs of decomposition.

o The presence of rigor mortis or lividity. o Presence of a valid DNR.

• Private EMS transport that did not involve 911 dispatch.

• Cardiac arrest of clear and obvious traumatic etiology.

• Bystander suspected cardiac arrest, where ROSC was achieved without the need for defibrillation or 911 Responder
CPR.

Data Collection & Elements

Data collection within CARES is based on the Utstein-style definitions — a standardized template of uniform reporting

guidelines for clinical variables and patient outcomes that was developed by international resuscitation experts.”2

The Utstein template can be used within hospitals, EMS systems, or communities and enables identification of areas

that need improvement and comparisons across systems.

The CARES web-based software (https://mycares.net/), links three sources to describe each OHCA event: 1) 911 call

center data, 2) EMS data, and 3) hospital data. Data can be submitted in two ways:

1. Using a data-entry form on the CARES website for manual input.

2. Daily upload from an agency’s electronic patient-care record (ePCR) system.

o Please note, only applicable if using a CARES-compliant ePCR vendor and the EMS agency meets

the minimum requirement of at least 10 CARES-qualifying cases per month.

Access to the CARES website is restricted to authorized users, who are prohibited from viewing data from another

agency or hospital.

‘Cummins RO, Chamberlain DA, Abamson NS, et al. Recommended guidelines for uniform reporting of data from out-of-hospital cardiac arrest: The Utstein style. A

statement for health professionals from a Task Force of the American Heart Association, the European Resuscitation Council, the Heart and Stroke Foundation of

Canada, and the Australian Resuscitation Council. Circulation. 84:960-975.

Perkins GD, Jacobs 1G. Nadkarni vM. et al. Cardiac Arrest and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Outcome Reports: Update of the Utstein Resuscitation Registry

Templates for Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest: A Statement for Healthcare Professionals From a Task Force of the international Liaison Committee on Resuscitation

and the Americas Heart Association Emergency Cardiovascular Care Committee and the Council on Cardiopulmonary, Critical Care, Perioperative and Resuscitation.

Resuscitation. 96:328-340.

Introduction to CARES 4

Table 1. CARES inclusion criteria (all of the following must be met)

Table 2. CARES exclusion criteria (any of the following)



PCARES
Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival

The required and optional CARES elements collected from 911 call centers, EMS providers, and receiving hospitals

are described below in Table 3.

Table 3. CARES data elements

Dispatch EMS Hospital

Patient demographics (i.e., name, age, date Emergency department outcome
of birth, incident address, sex, and
race/ethnicity) Provision of therapeutic

hypothermia (TTM)
Arrest circumstances (i.e., location type,

None; supplemental data
witness status, and etiology) Hospital outcome

Required completion is
encouraged

Resuscitation-specific data (i.e., CPR Discharge location
initiation, AED application, defibrillation,
initial arrest rhythm, return of spontaneous Neurological outcome at discharge
circulation [ROSC], field hypothermia, and (using the Cerebral Performance
pre-hospital survival status) Categories [CPC] Scale)

Pre-hospital interventions (i.e., usage of
mechanical CPR device, ITD, 12 Lead,

Time call received at
automated CPR feedback device, and Hospital procedures (i.e., coronary

dispatch center, time of
advanced airway; administration of drugs; angiography, CABG, and stent or

dispatch, time en route,
Supplemental and diagnosis of STEMI) CD placement), date/time of

time of arrival at the
discharge/death, and Medical

scene, time of arrival at
Treatment times (i.e., time of arrest, CPR, Record Number

ED
defibrillation, sustained ROSC, and field
termination)

The CARES dataset is geocoded on an annual basis and linked to a number of census-tract level variables: median

household income, median age, race/ethnicity, unemployment rate, poverty status, urbanicity, and educational

attainment.

Reporting Capability

The CARES software includes functionality to automate data analysis for participating EMS agencies. The reports

include 911 response intervals, delivery rates of critical interventions (i.e., bystander CPR, dispatcher CPR, public

access defibrillation [PAD]), and community rates of survival using the Utstein template. An EMS agency has

continuous access to their data and can generate reports by date range at their convenience. The software is also

capable of aggregate reporting such that CARES staff can generate custom reports for benchmarking and surveillance

purposes. In addition, hospitals have access to facility-specific reports, allowing users to view pre-hospital and in-

hospital characteristics of their patient population with benchmarking capability. A robust query feature also allows

agencies and hospitals to create customized searches of their data. These search results can be easily exported to

Microsoft Excel for further analysis.

Sample EMS Reports: Utstein Survival Report, CARES Survival Report, CARES Summary Report, EMS CAD Times

Report, and Demographics Report

Sample Hospital Reports: Hospital Survival Report, Hospital Benchmarking Report

Sample Dispatcher Assisted-CPR Report

Introduction to CARES 5



c,CARES
Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival

CARES in Action

CARES releases an Annual Report in the spring and uses this publication as an opportunity to highlight innovative

and impactful work being done in CARES states and communities, in the “CARES in Action” section. These reports

are hosted under the Data tab of our website.

Additional case studies, testimonials, and letters of support can be found in the CARES in Action document.

Additional Resources

Internal Resources

• CARES Fact Sheet

• MMWR Document

External Resources

• Resuscitation Academy

• HeartRescue

• Citizen CPR Foundation

Introduction to CARES 6





CARES
Carciac Airest Registry
to Enhance Surei

CARES EMS FAQ

What is CARES?
CARES stands for the Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival. CARES is a collaborative effort
of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and Emory University, Woodruff Health

Sciences. The ultimate goal of CARES is to improve survival from sudden cardiac death. The
registry is designed to help local EMS administrators and medical directors identify who is
affected, when and where cardiac arrest events occur, which elements of the system are
functioning properly and which elements are not, and how changes can be made to improve

cardiac arrest outcomes. CARES utilizes an internet database system that reduces time involved

in registering out-of-hospital cardiac arrest (OHCA) events, tracking patient outcomes with
hospitals prospectively, and response time intervals associated with First Responder and EMS
agencies.

What are the benefits of participation?
CARES participants can generate multiple reports in real-time via secure online access, allowing
for longitudinal, internal benchmarking. Both locally and nationally, there is increasing emphasis
on the role of data collection as the foundation for improving care. In 2015, the Institute of

Medicine released ‘Strategies to Improve Cardiac Arrest Survival: A Time to Act”, the first of
eight recommendations was the establishment of a national cardiac arrest registry “to monitor
performance in terms of both success and failure, identify problems, and track progress.” By
participating in CARES, EMS providers and hospitals are taking the initial step to saving lives in
their community.

What does participating in CARES involve?
CARES asks that a designated contact be established at each participating EMS agency. This
contact serves as the local CARES administrator for the agency and oversees CARES operations.

The EMS contact is the liaison between the EMS agency and CARES staff throughout
participation with CARES. The EMS contact works closely with CARES staff to determine the
most appropriate methods for starting data collection and program implementation and

monitors data collection for the EMS agency and participating hospitals.

How does data get into CARES?
There are two methods of data entry into the CARES database. 1) The CARES dataset can be
entered via desktop computer by the CARES EMS contact or the EMS field
providers/supervisors. 2) For agencies with more than 10 records a month, the CARES dataset
can be automatically extracted from the electronic Patient Care Report which then auto-
populates the CARES registry. Please see the CARES website for more information on our

upload process.

How does CARES collect hospital outcomes?
CARES encourages voluntary participation from hospitals where the participating EMS agency
transports cardiac arrest patients. A CARES contact person needs to be identified at each
participating hospital. The only requirements for a contact are that he/she has access to hospital

records to obtain outcome data and has a clinical background. The hospital dataset consists of
five simple questions and is only required for worked arrests of non-traumatic etiology where

the EMS crew indicates there was ongoing resuscitation in the emergency department. The



ç CARES
ThaCATT Reystry

E[ince Survival

hospital contact will be given access to the CARES website (https://mycares.net) and can enter
hospital outcomes at their convenience.

Is the CARES website secure?
CARES uses Secure Socket Layer (SSL) encryption technology in transmitting Protected Health

Information to redundant secure AWS EC2 servers to help ensure the integrity and privacy of the

Protected Health Information provided to them via the Internet. Encryption involves

systematically scrambling numbers and letters, so that even if someone managed to intercept the
information, they would not be able to decode the information. In order to take advantage of this

encryption technology, customers need to have an Internet browser that will support 128-bit

encryption. The data is protected with an encrypted database with daily backups, and is securely

accessible with redundant pathways via the CARES website. The entire system is protected by
cutting edge AWS protection, with off-site data archiving to assure data integrity even in the
event of a catastrophe.

Does CARES use identifiable patient information?
Yes, CARES requires the use of a patients name and date of birth (DOB) to link the EMS record
with the hospital outcomes. The name and DOB are provided by the EMS agency. Once a record
is determined to be complete by CARES staff, the record is de-identified, or ‘scrubbed”, of
patient name and DOB.

How does HIPAA apply?
CARES was approved and considered exempt from further review by the Emory University IRB.
CARES is considered to be a quality improvement/assurance program conducted by a covered
entity and is thus considered “healthcare operations.” Therefore CARES is not subject to Privacy
Rule requirements for research activities or patient authorization. In general, the Privacy Rule
permits the use or disclosure of patient information for a registry if the registries are supporting
public health activities and/or registries developed for health care operations of health care
providers, such as QA/QI. For more information, please see the letter from the CDC and the
Memorandum of Understanding between Emory/CARES and the CDC on the CARES website.

Who has access to the data?
Each participating EMS agency has access to all of the EMS and hospital data for their respective

patients. EMS agencies do not have access to data from other participating agencies. Hospital

contacts can view but not edit the EMS portion of the CARES form for patients transported to
their facility and do not have access to other hospitals’ data. However, Integrated Health
Systems can request permission to establish a multi-hospital CARES account allowing for
centralized data access and institutional level reporting. If the state is a CARES participant, the
state coordinator has access to all EMS and hospital data within the state. CARES staff has access

to all EMS and hospital data for monitoring and de-identification purposes.

What is the data used for?
CARES data helps local EMS administrators and medical directors identify which elements of the
system are functioning properly and which elements are not, and how changes can be made to

improve cardiac arrest outcomes. Using the CARES software, the EMS agency will have the

ability to generate “real-time” Utstein Survival Reports, EMS and First Responder response
interval reports, as well as demographic reports. The EMS agency can use this data to inform



PCARES
.ardiac Arrest RegiStry

Enhance Survival

system changes that will improve outcomes for cardiac arrest patients. CARES allows for
confidential internal benchmarking for the participating EMS agency. CARES data is also de

identified and aggregated each April allowing for annual reports to be shared locally, regionally,

statewide and nationally for both benchmarking and research purposes. CARES participates in

Healthy People 2020 in an effort to track bystander preparedness at the community level.
External use of the dataset is managed through a formal data sharing process.

How do I obtain more information about CARES?
More information is available via the CARES website (https://mycares.net). Visit the CARES

homepage and select the “About CARES’ tab. Please feel free to contact CARES staff with any
questions (information found on the “Contact Us” webpage).





S
u
d
d
en

ca
rd

ia
c

a
rr

e
st

ca
n

af
fe

ct
an

yo
ne

,
an

yw
he

re
,

at
an

y

ti
m

e.
A

12
-y

ea
r-

ol
d

gi
rl

in
a

sc
ho

ol
cl

as
sr

oo
m

.
A

31
-y

ea
r-

ol
d

fa
th

er
jo

gg
in

g
in

th
e

pa
rk

.
A

60
-y

ea
r-

ol
d

g
ra

n
d

m
o

th
er

at
ho

m
e

w
it

h
he

r
fa

m
il

y.

E
ve

ry
ye

ar
,

m
or

e
th

an
30

0,
00

0
p

eo
p

le
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

an
ou

t-
of

-

ho
sp

it
al

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s.

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
,

th
e

m
aj

or
it

y
of

th
es

e
p

at
ie

n
ts

do
no

t
su

rv
iv

e.

T
ha

t’
s

w
h

er
e

C
A

R
ES

ca
n

m
ak

e
a

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

.
C

A
R

ES
he

lp
s

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s
m

ea
su

re
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
an

d
id

en
ti

fy
ho

w
to

im
pr

ov
e

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
su

rv
iv

al
ra

te
s.

To
fi

nd
ou

t
ho

w
CA

RE
S

ca
n

he
lp

yo
ur

co
m

m
un

it
y,

re
ad

on
>

>

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
S

IT
E

S

C
ur

re
nt

CA
RE

S
m

em
be

rs
re

p
re

se
n

t
EM

S
ag

en
ci

es
an

d
ho

sp
it

al
s

th
at

se
rv

e
m

or
e

th
an

17
5

m
ill

io
n

A
m

er
ic

an
s,

an
d

th
e

re
gi

st
ry

co
nt

ai
ns

m
or

e
th

an
1

m
ill

io
n

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
ca

se
s.

j\
J
1

E
1$

L
1f

lf
l,

.!
f

f
f
iS

’
f
J
9

9
A

.E
i\

J1
.1

]C
jf

.1
r

St
ate

P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

t

T
o

le
ar

n
m

o
re

ab
o
u
t

C
A

R
ES

,
v

is
it

m
y

ca
re

s.
n

et
o
r

co
n

ta
ct

us
at

ca
re

s@
em

o
ry

.e
d
u
.

cP
C

A
R

E
S

C
ar

di
ac

A
rr

es
t

R
eg

is
tr

y
to

E
n

h
an

ce
Su

rv
iv

al

E
M

O
R

Y
W

O
O

D
R

U
F

F
H

E
A

L
T

H
S

C
IE

N
C

E
S

I
C

E
N

T
E

R



T
he

su
rv

iv
al

ra
te

fr
om

su
d
d
en

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
in

m
an

y
ci

ti
es

an
d

to
w

ns
ac

ro
ss

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s

ha
s

re
m

ai
ne

d
st

ag
n
an

t
fo

r
de

ca
de

s.
Y

et
so

m
e

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s

ha
ve

fo
un

d
w

ay
s

to
si

gn
if

ic
an

tl
y

im
pr

ov
e

a
pa

ti
en

t’
s

ch
an

ce
of

su
rv

iv
in

g

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
—

of
te

n
w

it
h

si
m

pl
e

ch
an

g
es

to
91

1
di

sp
at

ch
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

or

EM
S

tr
ai

ni
ng

an
d

pr
ot

oc
ol

s.
T

he
pr

oc
es

s
of

co
ll

ec
ti

ng
an

d
m

ea
su

ri
n

g
da

ta

al
on

e
se

em
s

to
m

ak
e

a
si

gn
if

ic
an

t
di

ff
er

en
ce

in
su

rv
iv

al
ra

te
s.

W
hi

le
m

an
y

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s
ha

ve
di

sc
ov

er
ed

w
ay

s
to

in
cr

ea
se

su
rv

iv
al

ra
te

s,

o
th

er
s

st
ru

gg
le

to
kn

ow
if

th
ey

’r
e

m
ov

in
g

in
th

e
ri

gh
t

di
re

ct
io

n.

S
ho

w
yo

ur
co

m
m

it
m

en
t

to
sa

vi
ng

liv
es

fr
om

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
by

en
ro

ll
in

g
yo

ur

co
m

m
un

it
y

in
C

A
R

ES
to

da
y.

W
H

A
T

IS
C

A
R

E
S

?

C
A

R
E

S—
th

e
C

ar
di

ac
A

rr
es

t
R

eg
is

tr
y

to
“W

ha
t

a
co

m
m

un
it

y
ca

n

E
nh

an
ce

S
ur

vi
va

l—
w

as
es

ta
bl

is
he

d
by

ga
in

fr
om

m
ea

su
ri

ng
th

e
U

.S
.

C
en

te
rs

fo
r

D
is

ea
se

C
on

tr
ol

an
d

P
re

v
en

ti
o
n

an
d

E
m

or
y

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y

to
im

pr
ov

e
su

rv
iv

al
fr

om
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

th
ro

u
g

h
ou

t-
of

-h
os

pi
ta

l
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

(O
H

C
A

)
d

at
a

co
ll

ec
ti

on
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

S
ta

te
s.

C
om

m
un

it
ie

s
th

at
jo

in
C

A
R

ES

co
m

m
it

to
en

te
ri

n
g

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
da

ta

fr
om

EM
S

ag
en

ci
es

an
d

ho
sp

it
al

s
in

to

a
na

ti
on

al
d
at

ab
as

e
in

o
rd

er
to

tr
ac

k

th
ei

r
p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

co
nf

id
en

ti
al

ly
ov

er

ti
m

e
an

d
im

pr
ov

e
th

e
qu

al
it

y
of

p
at

ie
n
t

ca
re

—
an

d
ul

ti
m

at
el

y
p

re
v

en
t

ne
ed

le
ss

d
ea

th
s.

By
jo

in
in

g
C

A
R

ES
,

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s
ga

in
m

or
e

th
an

ju
st

ac
ce

ss
to

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

th
at

w
ill

he
lp

th
em

im
pr

ov
e

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

an
d

sa
ve

liv
es

.
T

he
y

al
so

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

to
on

e
of

th
e

la
rg

es
t

EM
S

re
gi

st
ri

es
in

th
e

w
or

ld
,

an
d

on
e

of
th

e
fe

w
th

at
al

so

in
cl

ud
es

p
at

ie
n

t
o

u
tc

o
m

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
fr

om
ho

sp
it

al
s.

T
ho

se
fe

at
u
re

s
en

ab
le

C
A

R
ES

da
ta

to
be

us
ed

to
co

nd
uc

t
vi

ta
l

re
se

ar
ch

th
at

fu
rt

h
er

s
ou

r
kn

ow
le

dg
e

of
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

tr
ea

tm
en

t
an

d
sa

ve
s

co
un

tl
es

s
liv

es
fo

r
ye

ar
s

to
co

m
e.

W
H

O
U

S
E

S
C

A
R

E
S

?

•
H

os
pi

ta
ls

•
S

ta
te

EM
S

of
fi

ci
al

s

•
A

m
bu

la
nc

e
se

rv
ic

es

•
Fi

re
d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

•
R

es
ea

rc
he

rs

C
A

R
E

S
H

E
L

P
S

P
A

R
T

IC
IP

A
N

T
S

D
E

T
E

R
M

IN
E

:

•
W

ho
is

af
fe

ct
ed

by
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

?

•
W

he
re

an
d

w
he

n
ar

e
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

ev
en

ts
oc

cu
rr

in
g?

•
H

ow
do

ou
r

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
su

rv
iv

al

ra
te

s
co

m
pa

re
to

o
th

er

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s?

•
W

he
re

ca
n

w
e

m
ak

e
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

in
ca

re
th

at
w

ill
sa

ve
m

or
e

liv
es

?

B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
O

F
JO

IN
IN

G
C

A
R

E
S

a
jo

in
a

ne
tw

or
k

of
co

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s

w
or

ki
ng

to
g

et
h

er
to

in
cr

ea
se

su
rv

iv
al

fr
om

su
d

d
en

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
.

•
C

om
pa

re
yo

ur
co

m
m

un
it

y
to

lo
ca

l,
st

at
e,

an
d

na
ti

on
al

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

an
d

di
sc

ov
er

w
ay

s
to

im
pr

ov
e

yo
ur

em
er

g
en

cy
m

ed
ic

al
sy

st
em

’s
re

sp
o

n
se

to
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

.

•
U

se
si

m
pl

e,
H

IP
A

A
-c

om
pl

ia
nt

,
w

eb
-b

as
ed

so
ft

w
ar

e
to

lin
k

EM
S

an
d

ho
sp

it
al

da
ta

,

cr
ea

ti
ng

a
si

ng
le

re
co

rd
fo

r
ea

ch
O

H
C

A
ev

en
t.

•
A

cc
es

s
m

ul
ti

pl
e

re
al

-t
im

e
re

p
o
rt

in
g

fe
at

u
re

s,
in

cl
ud

in
g

ch
ar

ts
,

g
ra

p
h
s,

an
d

ta
b
le

s

fo
r

u
se

in
re

p
o
rt

s,
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s,

an
d

m
or

e.

•
R

ec
ei

ve
tr

ai
ni

ng
an

d
on

go
in

g
su

p
p

o
rt

fr
om

C
A

R
ES

st
af

f
to

g
et

th
e

m
os

t
o
u
t

of

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n,
in

cl
ud

in
g

o
n
e-

o
n
-o

n
e

co
ns

ul
ta

ti
on

to
re

vi
ew

yo
ur

co
m

m
un

it
y’

s

an
n
u
al

re
p

o
rt

s
an

d
co

m
p
ar

is
o
n

to
na

ti
on

al
b
en

ch
m

ar
k
s.

S
ub

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
ar

e
av

ai
la

bl
e

at
bo

th
th

e
st

at
e

le
ve

l
an

d
th

e
co

m
m

un
it

y
le

ve
l.

If
yo

ur
co

m
m

un
it

y
is

in
te

re
st

ed
in

im
pr

ov
in

g
ca

rd
ia

c
ar

re
st

ca
re

,
CA

RE
S

w
an

ts
to

ta
lk

w
ith

yo
u.

L
ea

rn
m

or
e

at
m

yc
ar

es
.n

et
or

em
ai

l
us

at
ca

re
s@

em
or

y.
ed

u.

8
an

d
tr

ul
y

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g

th
e

qu
al

it
y

of
its

ca
rd

ia
c

ar
re

st
ca

re
an

d
ca

rd
ia

c

ar
re

st
p

at
ie

n
t

ou
tc

om
es

is
in

va
lu

ab
le

—
an

d
I

th
in

k
CA

RE
S

is
th

e
be

st

w
ay

w
e

ca
n

do
th

at
.”

D
O

U
G

L
A

S
K

U
P

A
S

.
M

D

C
O

M
M

O
N

W
E

A
L

T
H

E
M

S
M

E
D

IC
A

L
D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

.
PE

N
N

SY
L

V
A

N
IA

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

O
F

H
E

A
L

T
H





Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival

IZfi CARES®
Cardiac Arrest Regist
to Enhance Surviv

Part E: Hospital_Section

47 - ER Outcome

O Died in the ED

0 Admitted to hospital

0 Transferred to another acute

care facility from the ED

48 - Was hypothermia care initiated
or continued in the hospital

O Yes

O No

49 - Hospital Outcome

Q Died in the hospital

0 Discharged alive

0 Patient made DNR
If yes, choose one of the following:

O Died in the hospital

O Discharged alive

O Transferred to another acute care hospital

O Not yet determined

0 Transferred to another acute care hospital

0 Not yet determined

50 - Discharge From The Hospital

Home/Residence

Rehabilitation Facility

Skilled Nursing Facility/Hospice

51 - Neurological Outcome At Discharge

From Hospital

O Good Cerebral Performance (CPC 1)

O Moderate Cerebral Disability (CPC 2)

Q Severe Cerebral Disability (CPC 3)

Q Coma, Vegetative State (CPC 4)

Hospital_procedures

_________________________________________________________________________________________

52 - Why was hypothermia care
continued in the hospital?

Q Awake/Following commands

O DNR/Family request

O Unwitnessed cardiac arrest

O Unshockable rhythm

O No TH program in place

O Other

O Unknown

0
0
0

53 - Date and time of Dischargeloeath

__ __lit__ __H__

Hour Minute

55- Coronary Angiography Performed 0 Yes 0 No 0 Unknown

If ‘Yes’, provide date and time:

I lit hI__
Hour Minute

56- Was a cardiac stent placed 0 Yes 0 No 0 Unknown

57- CABG performed D Yes 0 No 0 Unknown

58 - Was an lCD placed and/or scheduled 0 Yes 0 No 0 Unknown

54 - Was the final diagnosis
acute myocardial infarction

0 Yes D No 0 Unknown

Hospital Comments

59 - Hospital Medical Record Number

lIlIIlllIIIIIlI



/

4

3,

I’

I!

ITEM 24.54 (TAB 9)



TE)(.A.S Texas Department of State Health Services
Health and Human
Services Jennifer A. Shuford, M.D.. M.RH.

Commissioner

February 1, 2024

Jorge Delgado, Board Chairman
Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council
P.O. Box 450094
Laredo, TX 78045

Dear Mr. Delgado:

The Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Fiscal Support and
Oversight Unit has completed the fiscal monitoring review of the EMS/CO-RAC
5B8 and EMS/CO-RAC grants. The review covered the period of March 2023
through May 2023.The primary objective of this review was to determine if
The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council complied with the fiscal
requirements of federal and state grant regulations, DSHS policies and
procedures, and the contract provisions.

The attached report details the scope and methodology of the fiscal review.
The review resulted in three findings. After an analysis of the management
responses, the questioned costs of $303.21 associated with finding #2 are
now disallowed. Please follow the instructions included with the enclosed
report to resolve the disallowed amount. A follow-up team will be in contact
regarding the implementation of the corrective action plans.

We appreciate the cooperation extended to us by the management and staff
of The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council during this review. Please
contact David Lupercio, Audit Manager at 512-217-3085 or me at 512-776-
6991, if you have any questions. For technical assistance, please email
FSTA@dshs.texas.gov.

Sincerely,

Ann H. Duncan, CPA, MPA, CFE
Director, Fiscal Support and Oversight
Office of Compliance and Accountability

Enclosure

cc: John Keiser, Regional Programs Director

P.O. Box 149347 . Austin, Texas 78714-9347. Phone: 888-963-7111 • TTY: 800-735-2989 dshs.texas.gov



TEXAS
Health and Human
Services

Texas Department of State Health Services

Jennifer A. Shuford, M.D., M.P.H.
Commissioner

Fiscal Support and Oversight
Fiscal Compliance Review Report

The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma
February 1, 2024

Objective:

To determine whether The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma
(Seven Flags) financial management system and the amounts
contracts referenced below complied with applicable state
regulations, Department of State Health Services (DSHS) rules,
term and conditions.

Contracts and Period Reviewed:

Legend for Program Abbreviations:

EMS/CO-RAC-5B8 - Emergency Medical Services/Cou nty-Regional Advisory
Council -Senate Bill 8

EMS/CC- RAC
Council

Emergency Medical Services/Cou nty- Regional Advisory

Fieldwork Conducted: November 2023

Scope: The scope of this review encompassed an analysis of policies,
procedures, and supporting documentation for:

• Other contract expenditures - A total of 19 expenditure transactions
were tested from the following expense budget categories: Equipment
purchases, Scholarships, and administrative expenses.

• Cost Allocation Plan - Methodologies and the application to expenditures
were tested.

• Equipment paid by DSHS - Testing included verification of existence
and reporting accuracy.

• General compliance with rules, regulations, and contract provisions.

paid for the
and federal
and contract

Contract Contract Review
ContractNumber ProgramlD Term Amount Period

9/15/2022- 3/1/2023-
HHS001256500001 EMS/CO-RAC SB8 12/31/2024 $525,627.09 5/31/2023

5/01/2018- 3/1/2023-
HHS000124600014 EMS/CO-RAC 8/31/2023 $858,146.00 5/31/2023

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 1 of 7



The DSHS fiscal monitoring team reviewed the agency’s accounting policies
and procedures to determine whether they were adequate to ensure accurate,
current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of grant activities. The
monitoring team examined the documentation to verify the source and
application of contract funds. We also reviewed documentation and
interviewed agency staff to determine whether the agency complied with
applicable federal and state regulations, DSHS policies and procedures, and
contract provisions. In some instances, the results of the independent audit
and/or other audits were relied on to determine grant compliance with specific
provisions.

Detailed Findings and Recommendations

The fiscal review resulted in three findings, as detailed below. The first finding
is related to internal controls and several policies and procedures that were
not provided. The second finding pertains to sales tax charged to the EMS/CC
RAC grant. The third finding is related to discrepancies with the property
inventory report (GC-11). A questioned cost of $303.21 is associated with
Finding #2.

Finding #1 DSHS Financial Admin/Internal Controls - Deficient

Condition: The following issues were noted during review of the agency’s
policies, procedures, Chart of Accounts and monthly bank reconciliations.

1. The grantee does not have written policies and/or procedures covering
the following areas:

a. Accounting
b. Procurement of Goods and Services
c. Fixed Assets Inventory
d. Records Retention
e. Information Technology

2. The grantee did not provide the Chart of Accounts, as requested by
DSHS.

3. The grantee did not submit copies of monthly bank reconciliations, as
requested by DSHS.

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 2 of 7



As a result, DSHS does not have reasonable assurance that DSHS grants are
managed in accordance with the terms and conditions outlined in the
contracts.

Criteria: 2 CFR §200.303, states in part, “The non-Federal entity must: (a)
Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that
provides reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the
Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of the Federal award.”

Green Book, Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government, section
3.10, states in part, “Effective documentation assists in management’s design
of internal control by establishing and communicating the who, what, when,
where, and why of internal control execution to personnel. Documentation
also provides a means to retain organizational knowledge and mitigate the
risk of having that knowledge limited to a few personnel, as well as a means
to communicate that knowledge as needed to external parties, such as
external auditors.”

Questioned Cost: $0.00

Recommendation: To resolve this finding, submit a corrective action plan
(CAP) to ensure board approved policies and/or procedures are written and
adopted covering the areas specified above and that requested documents
such as monthly bank reconciliations and the Chart of Accounts are made
available upon request.

Management Response: “SFRAC Administrator will address these
deficiencies in the following manner:

1) Develop a Financial Policies and Procedures Manual containing all the
areas identified in the review as not having been met in addition to a
comprehensive content layout to create a framework for operating
standards and general fiscal expectations for internal control as an
organization. The proposed Financial Policies and Procedures Manual will
be a separate document from the existing SFRAC By-Laws.

2) Acquire (i.e., purchase) and implement accounting software which
provides the needs specific to fund accounting for non-profits such as the
SFRAC organization. The software program shall have the capability to
create charts of accounts, bank reconciliation, generate other financial
management reports as needed such as financial statements.”

Responsible Party: Development of Financial Policies and Procedures: John
R. Keiser, SFRAC Administrator

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 3 of 7



Acquisition and implementation of a fund accounting software: John R. Keiser,
SFRAC Administrator

Approval of Financial Policies and Procedures and purchase of fund accounting
software: SFRAC Board of Directors/Executive Board:

Jorge Delgado, Chairman

Silvestre Rodriguez, Vice Chairman

Jose “Joe” Gonzalez, Jr., Treasurer

Letisia Colon, Secretary

Implementation Date:
Development and adoption of the proposed financial policies and procedures
manual: Initial request; May 1, 2024.

Purchase and Implementation of fund accounting software license: February 1,
2024.

DSHS Reply: The management response was reviewed and accepted.

Finding #2 DSHS Expenditures - Unallowable

Condition: Two out of nineteen expenditures tested for the grants included
$303.21 of state sales tax, which is an unallowable charge to DSHS. The
expenditures were for equipment purchases charged to the EMS/CO-RAC SB8
grant.

Criteria: 2 CFR 200: § 200.470 Taxes (including Value Added Tax) states in
part, “(b) For nonprofit organizations and IHEs: (1) In general, taxes which
the nonfederal entity is required to pay and which are paid or accrued in
accordance with GAAP, and payments made to local governments in lieu of
taxes which are commensurate with the local government services received
are allowable, except for: (i) Taxes from which exemptions are available to
the non-Federal entity directly or which are available to the non-Federal entity
based on an exemption afforded the Federal government and, in the latter
case, when the Federal awarding agency makes available the necessary
exemption certificates, (ii) Special assessments on land which represent
capital improvements, and (iii) Federal income taxes.”

Questioned Cost: $303.21

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 4 of 7



Recommendation: To resolve this finding:

1. Submit a payment of $303.21 to DSHS according to the instructions
included in the Final Report.

2. Submit a CAP that specifically details the policies and/or procedures

that will be implemented to ensure unallowable sales tax will not be

charged to DSHS grants.

Management Response: “To avoid the issue of paying non-allowable sales
tax in the future, SFRAC administrator has obtained a credit/debit card under
the name of the SFRAC organization, this way any purchase(s) made in the
future requiring the use of a credit/debit card can apply the tax-exempt status.
The SFRAC organization currently does have an active tax-exempt status.

SFRAC will submit a remittance check in the amount of $303.21 to DSHS to
cover the disallowed sales tax expenditure made during the purchase of the
SFRAC equipment for Dell Corporation.”

Responsible Party: John R. Keiser, SFRAC Administrator

Implementation Date: February 29, 2024

DSHS Reply: The management response was reviewed and accepted.

Disallowed Cost: $303.21

Finding #3 DSHS Equipment - Inaccurate/Incomplete report

Condition: The following discrepancies were noted during the review of the
fiscal year 2023 Property Inventory Report (GC-11):

I. Two items reported on the fiscal year 2023 GC-11 form submitted to
DSHS have incorrect purchase dates. The grantee reported the items
were acquired on February 22, 2022. However, the invoice for the
equipment states that the purchase date was February 21, 2023.

2. In addition, these same two items were listed with incorrect unit cost
amounts. The grantee included the sales tax charged on the purchase
of these items in the reported unit cost amounts (See Finding #2).

As a result, Seven Flags RAC is not in compliance with the GC-11 reporting
requirements.

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 5 of 7



Criteria: Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS) June 2004, Subpart
C, Post Award Requirements — Financial Administration, .20 Standards for
financial management systems, states in part: “(a) A state must expend and
account for grant funds in accordance with state laws and procedures for
expending and accounting for its own funds. Fiscal control and accounting
procedures of the state, as well as its subgrantees, must be sufficient to— (1)
Permit preparation of reports required by this part and the statutes authorizing
the grant. (b) The financial management systems of other grantees and sub
grantees must meet the following standards- (3) Internal control. Effective
control and accountability must be maintained for all grant and subgrant cash,
real and personal property, and other assets. Grantees and subgrantees must
adequately safeguard all such property and must assure that it is used solely
for authorized purposes. “; and .32 Equipment, states, in part: “(d)
Management requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (including
replacement equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part with grant
funds, until disposition takes place will, as a minimum, meet the following
requirements: (1) Property records must be maintained that include a
description of the property, a serial number or other identification number,
the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the
property, percentage of federal or state participation in the cost of the
property, the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the
property. (2) A physical inventory of the property must be taken, and the
results reconciled with the property records at least once every two years. (3)
A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent
loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage, or theft shall be
investigated.”

Questioned Cost: $0.00

Recommendation: To resolve this finding, submit a CAP to ensure future
Property Inventory Reports (form GC-11) are complete and accurate. The
discrepancies noted above must be corrected in the next annual Property
Inventory Report submission.

Management Response: “SFRAC Administrator admittingly recognizes the
misinformation contained in the GC-1 1 report, however, attributes the
misinformation to an oversight error and typo. SFRAC administrator has
already made the corrections on the GC-11 form to reflect the correct unit
costs (less the tax) and the correct purchase date (See Attached).

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 6 of 7



Henceforth, SFRAC administrator will make deliberate and concerted effort
to ensure that the information inputted and contained in the GC-1 1 is
accurate.”

Responsible Party: John R. Keiser, SFRAC Administrator

Implementation Date: January 31, 2024

DSHS Reply: The management response was reviewed and accepted.

Final Report The Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council on Trauma Page 7 of 7





Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council

January 31, 2024

Trauma Service Area - T

Elizabeth Stevenson, R.N.
Stroke Designation Program Manager
Texas Department of State Health Services EMS/Trauma Systems
Attn: Stroke Designation Program
P0 Box 149347 MC 1876
Austin, TX 787 14-9347

Re: Laredo Medical Center Participation Confirmation Letter (Stroke Re-designation).

Dear Ms. Stevenson:

This letter is to confirm that Laredo Medical Center is an active participant of the Seven Flags Advisory Council
(SFRAC) and in good standing with the organization. Attendance of the SFRAC Board meetings by Laredo Medical
Center representatives is in compliance with SFRAC attendance rules, as well as the submittal of required
documentation and payment of SFRAC membership fees. All documentation associated with Laredo Medical
Center’s active participation, and “Good Standing” status are on file with the Seven Flags RAC.

Furthermore, Laredo Medical Center’s involvement in the Seven Flags RAC includes the active participation among
the RAC’s various committees.

Should you have any questions or require additional information please feel free to contact me at your earliest
convenience at 956-722-3995 or via email atjrkeiser@stdc.cog.tx.us.

Sincerely,

John R. Keiser
SFRAC Administrator (TSA-T)

Jorge Delgado, Chairman
Silvestre Rodriguez, Vice Chairman

Jose lonzaIez, Jr., Treasurer
letisia Colon, SecretaryP.O. Box 450094, Laredo, Texas 78045





February 19, 2024

Seven Flags Regional Advisory Council
Trauma Service Area - T

Elizabeth Stevenson, RN.
Stroke Designation Program Manager
Texas Department of State Health Services EMS/Trauma Systems
P0 Box 149347 MC 1876
Austin, TX 78714-9347

Re: Laredo Medical Center Participation Confirmation Letter (Neonatal/NICU).

Dear Ms. Stevenson:

This letter is to confirm that Laredo Medical Center is an active participant of the Seven Flags Advisory Council
(SFRAC) and in good standing with the organization. Attendance of the SFRAC Board meetings by Laredo Medical
Center representatives is in compliance with SFRAC attendance rules, as well as the submittal of required
documentation and payment of SFRAC membership fees. All documentation associated with Laredo Medical
Center’s active participation, and “Good Standing” status are on file with the Seven Flags RAC.

Furthermore, Laredo Medical Center’s involvement in the Seven Flags RAC includes the active participation among
the RAC’s various committees, inclusive of the Neonatal/NICU Committee.

Should you have any questions or require additional information please feel free to contact me at your earliest
convenience at 956-722-3995 or via email atjrkeiser@stdc.cog.tx.us.

Sincerely,

John R. Keiser
SFRAC Administrator (TSA-T)

Jorge Delgado, Chairman
Silvestre Rodriguez, Vice Chairman

Jose Gonzalez, Jr., Treasurer
Letisia Colon, Secretary

‘I

P.O. Box 450094, Laredo, Texas 78045


